ANNUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICES FOR SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMPREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM
QUESTIONS ON RFP
1.

Water:

a. Where will we be allowed to get water for cleaning?
From various Fire hydrants in the Brentwood Water Services System
b. Will there be a charge for water? If so, what is the cost?
No Cost for water
c. Will a water meter be required? If so, is there a cost?
Meter / check valve will be provided at no cost for record keeping and for
backflow prevention.

2. Dumping of Debris: a. Where will we dump the debris?
This is the responsibility of the contractor.
b. How far is the dump site from the work area?
Contractor responsibility
c. Will there be a charge for dumping? If so, how much?
Contractor Responsibility
3. Lift Station Cleaning: a. What is the diameter and depth of each lift station?
Varies, Site visits can be made available upon request.
4. Clean & Inspect:

a. Estimated quantity to clean and inspect is 100,000 LF.
b. What are the various pipe diameter sizes? Ranges from 8” to
30” But is predominately 8”-15”
c. What is the quantity (LF) for each diameter size?
Will vary based on areas to be cleaned and inspected.

5. Service Laterals:

a. Line item sheet says to clean laterals and do not inspect.
Service laterals are to be cleaned on a case by case basis if needed
based on blockages or other service related issues.
b. Is the cleaning to be done from clean-outs?
Varies, some have clean-outs while others will require lateral
launch from the main.
c. Page 8, Item 3 says to inspect laterals. Are laterals to be
inspected? If so, there is no line item. If inspection is required, is
it from clean-outs or the main? Inspection of service laterals is
limited to verification of removal of blockages and is considered
part of the cleaning process. No reporting is required of service
inspection. Varies, some have clean-outs while others will require
lateral launch from the main.

6. Root Removal:

a. Line item sheet has Root Removal – 500 LF.
b. Is root removal for manholes only?
Linear foot line item is for line work, Manhole line items are for
manhole work.
c. Page 10, Item 8 says to not remove roots, taps, etc from main
lines. Are root and/or taps to be removed from main lines? Root
removal will be done on a case by case basis upon request of BWS.
Not as a routine part of the cleaning and inspection process.

7. Emergency Call-Out: a. The * states contractor must respond within two hours of
notification of an emergency.
b. How often did this happen during the last contract? Infrequently but contractor must be available when contacted.
c. Are you expecting a contractor to have equipment on site 24/7?
No, but contractor must be able to respond within the prescribed
time frame with the appropriate equipment.
d. Are you willing to discuss alternatives to this stipulation? The
successful contractor will not be relieved from meeting this
stipulation.
8. The items requested as part of the proposal submission do not seem to match or provide
information necessary to adequately assess to evaluation criteria. For example, the experience
of the field superintendent and project manager are part of evaluation criteria but resumes are
not mentioned as part of the proposal submission. Is there a definitive list of items required for
the proposal that will satisfy the evaluation criteria? The proposal should include any
information the contractor feels will properly and thoroughly describe the contractor’s ability to
provide the services requested in this RFP with concentration on the evaluation criteria
provided.
9. Proposal submittal form states there are 3 lift stations maintained monthly and 7 lift stations
maintained quarterly, but the tech specs state there are 6 lift stations that require quarterly
inspections. Can you confirm which quantity is correct? Seven lift stations require quarterly
cleaning. The Technical specifications have been revised accordingly and included in this
response.
10. What are the net payment terms from the city after submittal of payment application? The City
processes invoices three times a month. Upon submittal of invoice and all associated
deliverables related to the invoice the pay request will be reviewed promptly and upon approval
will submitted to finance for payment.

11. If there are questions/concerns about the contract portion of RFP, do you want this info listed in
the deviations or negotiate post award? Any deviation to the included contract must be
included in the proposal and will be included in the evaluation of the proposal.
12. Does the city have a format of the report to be completed for the pump/lift stations visual
inspection or is the contractor responsible for developing the report? The contractor is
responsible for developing this report in coordination with the City.
13. What is the size of lift stations? See Question #3

14. Under the Termination clause – Funding, it says that contract may be terminated immediately if
funding is cut. There is no mention of payment up to the point of termination. If this is correct,
will this be added to the contract? If the contract is terminated because of discontinuation of
funding, the City would pay the Contractor for all services rendered up to the date of
termination.
15. The Indemnification clause in the contract does not have any language regarding contractor
protection from claims/damages due to the sole negligence or mutual negligence caused by the
city and its employees. Will this be added to the contract? The Tennessee Attorney General
has determined that Tennessee cities do not have the authority to indemnify other parties for
negligence claims under Tennessee law. However, the City does maintain its own liability
insurance to cover negligence claims by third parties against the City.

